On the Gold Ore Deposit of Chia-pi-kou and Lao-chin-chang

Hiroshi Ozaxk1

1. Location

The mines are located at about 170 km east of Pan-shih Station on the Feng-
tien-Chi-lin Line. There is an automobile road between the station and the mines,
but it has to cross the Sung-hua-chiang River twice, at Hua-tien and Hung-shih-la-
tzu and the wooden bridges at these points are subject to damage. In addition,
the river course above Hung-shih-la-tzu meanders and in many places the road
has been cut in the cliffs and has many curves and changes in grade.

The ore is transported between Lao-chin-chang and Chia-pi-kou by means of
an aerial ropeway, but men and materials have to depend upon truck service over
the road, which is 16 km long.
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Fig. 1. Map Showing the Location of Chia-pi-kou and Lao-chin-
chang Gold Mines.
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2. History

Placer gold fields in Manchuria were discovered by smugglers of ginseng during
the Ching dynasty. The gold ficlds were exploited in accordance with the size of
the deposits, and Chia-pi-kou and Lao-chin-chang are among the most famous
gold fields.

The valleys of Chia-pi-kou were worked out everywhere by multitudes of Chi-
nese from the downstream area. At the top of the creck they discovered a large
outcrop of a gold-quartz vein, more than 4 m wide, and the mining operations
were changed from placer mining to gold vein mining. At the peak period, around
1847, the number of men mining gold was reported to be forty thousand.

The gold-quartz vein was divided along the outcrop into appropriate lengths,
and a gang including as many as thirty persons was assigned to work each section.
The old names of pits, such as Pa-jen-pan and Shih-san-jen-pan, literally “eight-
man gang” and “thirteen-man gang,” remind us of the ancient work system.

Because of primitive mining methods, the work may have been checked in
some places by gushing water. However, important bonanzas were worked to
greater depths by setting closely-spaced wooden pumps along the slope and re-
moving water by a relay method with hand buckets.

The rich ore may have been worked by a selective mining method, as the
pillars left in the old work places show a grade of over 10 gr of gold per ton,
hence the crude ore at that time may have been richer than 20 gr per ton.

In 1902, just after the North Manchurian Incident, Russians entered the area
and set up a boiler plant preparatory to starting mining operations, but they left
at the outbreak of the Russo-Japanese War in 1904. In 1915 mining rights were
obtained by a Sino-Japanese corporation, but the mine was not taken over and
no enterprise resulted.

Since then, the actual administrative rights of the mine remained in the hands
of the Han family, descendants of the initial owner of the mine.

In June 1938, upon investigation of the mine, the Manchurian Mining Com-
pany (Manshu Kozan K. K.) decided to reopen the mine and introduce modern
mining methods. The company established an all-sliming flotation plant with a
capacity of 3,000 tons a month at Chia-pi-kou and planned to start exploitation
there.

Later, Lao-chin-chang was transferred from the Manchurian Gold Mining
Company to the Manchurian Mining Company. Regular operation of the Chia-
pi-kou mine was begun in 1940, and of the Lao-chin-chang in 1942, but security
and transportation problems have greatly hampered the construction work.

Separate descriptions will be given of these two mines.






